FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE

.................................................................................................................................

LIMITED

STANDALONE

ASL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
302, Eco Space

Old Nagardas Road,

Mogra Village,

Andheri (E.),

MUMBALI : 400 069.

TEL.: 40473900
FAX: 40473940,
Email: info@aslco.in




302, Eco Space,

Off Old Nagardas Road, Mogra Lane,

Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 069 (INDIA)

@B +91-22-4047 3900 ; 4047 3940 /q S L & CO .
Fax :+ 91-22-4047 3939
E-mail : info@aslco.in Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The members of FSPL Specialities Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of FSPL Specialities Private
Limited (“the Company’”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, the changes in equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, the standalone financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our lespon51b111ty is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other mfomla‘norl 1s mqtenally
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge ,obtamed in the audit ors,
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [ ( FRN \g/ 1921W ) %)

\\'\ k MpriERd Pise) /’
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materla]f ‘“Tstatemg )ofﬂn/
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report it T this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind
AS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operafing effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. e Ao LG

A .
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

e FBvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a). We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b). In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c). The standalone financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account; ~ -, ,

i
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(d). In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e). On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(g). With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, during the year under review no
remuneration has been paid by the company to any of its directors. Accordingly,
provisions of Section 197 of the Act relating to remuneration to directors are not
applicable. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us;

(h). With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial Statements — Refer Note No. 29(1) to the financial statements.

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. there are no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31% March, 2025.

iv.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Z AL & CO .b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

) e funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

~ provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and
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¢) As per the information and explanation given to us , to the best of our knowledge
and belief, and audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

V. As stated in Note No 41 to the standalone financial statements ,

a. The Company has paid dividend during the year in accordance with the
provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013

b. The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended the payment of a
final dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

vi. Based on our examination, which Included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except that audit trail was not enabled at the database level to log any
direct changes.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
== (Regn.No 101921 W)

(Shikha Jain)

PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
UDIN : 25136484BMJMWD3107

PLACE: - MUMBALIL
DATED: 20 May 2025
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Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the
Standalone Financial Statements of FSPL Specialities Private Limited for the Year Ended
31° March 2025.

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state as under. Matters specified in clauses (i)(a)(B),(c),(d),(e),
(iii)(a)(A),(v),(viii),(ix),{x),(xi)(b)(e),(xii),(xiv),(xv),(xvi),(xvii),(xviii),(xx)(a),(xxi) of paragraph 3
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 do not apply to the Company. Accordingly no
comments have been made on the matters not applicable to the company.

(i)
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment;

(b) As per the information and explanations given to us, property, plant and equipment
have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals having
regards to the size of the company and nature of its assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification;

(ii )
(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically
verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of Inventory were noticed on such verification
between the physical stock and the book records;

(b) As per information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, during the year under review, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limit in excess of ¥ 500 Lakhs from bank on the basis of security of the current
assets. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and
no material discrepancies have been observed.

(iii )

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, and based on the examination of the books and records of the
Company, during the year under review, the Company has not provided any guarantee
or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

i However, the Company has granted a loan to a company which is not a subsidiary.
=777 . o ==.The details of such loan are as follows:

o - — —

il - (X In Lakhs)
FRNy O7* Particulars Loans
Q/ ' Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year
Company other than Subsidiary 600.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Company other than Subsidary 466.75
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records , the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans are, prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records, there is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest for the loans and advances in the nature of loans given by the
Company. As such we are unable to make specific comment on regularity of
repayment of principal and payment of interest.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records, since the loans and advances in the nature of loans are
given by the company without any stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest, we are unable to make any specific comment on the overdue
outstanding as at year end.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records, there were no loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties
which had fallen due during the year that were renewed, extended, or replaced by
fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() As per information and explanations given to us, and based on examination of the
books and records, the company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loan
that are repayable on demand or without specifying terms or period of repayment,
however no such loans or advances were granted to Promoters, related party as
defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv ) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
loans or provided guarantees or securities to the parties covered under Section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act in respect of loans granted to other parties.

(v ) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed cost
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete;

4
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(vi)

(b) As per the records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance,. income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, to the extent
applicable to it;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
goods and service tax, duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax and
any other statutory dues, to the extent applicable to it, which have not been
deposited on account of a dispute except ¥247.73 Lakhs Income Tax demand for
A.Y.2024-25 , in respect of which application for rectification is pending with the
Assessing Officer ;

(vii ) As per information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the company or
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year under review;

(viii ) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the transactions of the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Ind AS;

(ix ) On the basis financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisations of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying financial statements, our
knowledge of board of directors and management plans , and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our notice that causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due

(x ) According fo the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the amount of Z52.61 lakhs remaining unspent under sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, pursuant to ongoing projects, has
been transferred to the special account titled ‘Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
Account for “FY 2024-25 in compliance with the provisions of sub-section (6) of Section
135 of the said Act.” e ———

o
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Financial Year

Amount  Unspent
on Ongoing CSR
Projects (% in lakhs)

Due Date  for | Actual Date of
Transfer (within 30 | Transfer

days from year-
end)

| 2024-25

52.61

30-April-2025 26-April-2025

PLACE: - MUMBAL
DATED: - 20 May 2025

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

&
(Shi%ﬁﬁn)

PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
UDIN : 25136484BMJMWD3107
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Annexure “B” referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the
Standalone Financial Statements of FSPL Specialities Private Limited for the Year Ended
31" March 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of FSPL
Specialities Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
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procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In Our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

FOR ASL & CO.
— Chartered Accountants
S0 (Regn.No101921 W)

NV (Shﬁy/jain)

PLACE: - MUMBAL. : ‘ PARTNER
DATED: - 20 May 2025 Membership No. : 136484
UDIN : 25136484BMIJMWD3107



FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2025

CIN No. U24290MH2020PTC345418

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 4,605.04 4,171.47
Capital Work in Progress 3 649.71 -
Financial Asscls
Investments 4 52.30 £96 .06
Other Financial Asscts 5 261.97 0.20
Non Current - Tax Assels (Net) 6 121.44 0.95
Other Non - Current Assels 7 784.10 -
Total Non - Current Assets 6,474.56 4,86R.68
Current Assets
Inventories 8 32103 42050
Financial Asscts
Trade Receivahles 9 32145 645.96
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 18.31 52.11
Bank Balance other than above 11 217.15 421.00
Loans 12 46675 =
Other Financial Assets 13 11.64 64.93
Other Current Assets 14 62.97 68 55
Total Current Assets 1,419.30 1,673.05
TOTALASSETS 7,893.86 6,541.73
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 15 100 00 100 .00
Other Equity 16 6,968.26 5,959 64
TOTAL EQUITY 7,068,26 6,059.64
LIABILITIES
Non Current Liahilities
Delerred Tax Liability (Net) 17 84 60 54.40
Total Non - Current Liabilities 84.60 54.40
Current Liabilities
Financial Liahilities
Borowings 18 674.08 -
Trade Payables 19
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 3.75 104.94
Dues to Others 3626 311.14
Other Current Liabilities 20 23.64 8.71
Provisions 1 3.27 2.90
Total Current Liabilities 741.00 427.69
TOTAL LIABILITIES 825.60 482.09
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,893.86 6,541.73
CORPORATE INFORMATION 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 3to 4l

As per our report of even date attached

For ASL & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.

Shik JK

Paitner

Meinhership No. 134484 [ __?1:
l:::‘_-':,!

Date : 20th May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED -
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPEQIA

ot

Surendrakumar Tibrewala

Chairmian and Managing Director

DIN: 00218394




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
CIN No. U24290MH2020PTC345418

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note. No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 4,139.47 7.922.69
Other Income 23 130.73 287.75
Total Income 4,270.20 8,210.44
Expenses
Cost of Malerial Consumed 24 2,234.96 4.811.09
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods / Stock in Trade 25 4.14 75.65
Employee Benefit Expenscs 26 83.83 81.53
Finance Cost 27 22.52 9.20
Depreciation and Amortization 3 171.93 120.49
Other Expenscs 28 192.77 166.62
Total Expenses 2,710.15 5,264.58
Profit Before Tax 1,560.05 2,945.86
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 17 243.50 489.00
Deferred Tax 17 30.20 34.95
(Excess) / Short Provision of Earlier Years 17 2.73 -
Total Tax Expense 276.43 523.95
Profit After Tax 1,283.62 2,421.91
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Remeasurement of Defined Benefil Plans - -
Income Tax related to above - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,283.62 2,421.91
Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted ) 31 12836 242.19
CORPORATE INFORMATION 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 3 to 41

As per our report of even date attached
For ASL & CO ;
Chartered Accountants =0 S
Firm Reg, No. 101921W  # -3
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Partner ey

Membership No. 136484 S=iERED A G =

Date : 20th May, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITER

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEQTE¥
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Surendrakumar Tibrewala
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00218354




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

CIN No. U24290MH2020PTC345418

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 1,560.05 2,945.86
Add/ (Less):- Adjustments for Non-Cash / Non-Operating Items:
Depreciation & Amortization 171.93 120.49
Finance Cost 22.52 9.20
(Gain) / Loss on Fair Valuation of Investments (39.22) (255.57)
Interest Income (80.02) (31.29)
Operating Profit Before Changes in Working Capital 1,635.26 2,788.69
Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 32451 205.51
(Increasc) / Decrease in Inventories 99.47 (51.49)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets (413.46) (51.30)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Asscts 558 13.06
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non - Current Assets - 17.03
(Increase) / Decrease in other Financial Investment (261.77) (21.00)
Increase / (Decreuse) in Trade Payables (376.07) (110.67)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 14.93 (96.02)
[ncreuse / (Decrease) in Provisions 037 0.17

(606.44) (94.71)

Cash Generated from Operations 1,028.82 2,693.98
Less: Taxes Paid (Net of refund received) (366.70) (488.98)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY (A) 662.12 2,205.00

B | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchuse of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets (1,255.21) (3,243.33)
Investments (purchased) / sold (net) in securities 682.97 1.880.60
Investinent in Capital Advances (784.10) -
Movement in other bank balance 203.85 21.00
Inierest Received 80.02 31.29
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY (B) (1,072.47) (1,310.44)




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
CIN No. U24290MH2020PTC345418

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

C | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 674.07 (5.79)
Finance Cost (22.52) (9.20)
Corporate Dividend paid (275.00) (950.00)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY (C) 376.55 (964.99)

D INET CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR (A+B+C) (33.80) (70.43)
Add: Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 52.11 122.54
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 18.31 52.11

Note :

i.  The ahbove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Meth

(Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

ii.  Reconeiliation of Cash and Cash Equivalent

od” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT COMPRISES AS UNDER:
Balance with banks in current accounts 3.77 44.13
Cash on Hand 14.54 7.98
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (REFER NOTE 10) 18.31 52.11
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT 18.31 52.11

As per our report of even date attached

For ASL & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 101921W

S h%ﬁ%

Partner

Membership No. 136484

Date : 20th May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

L

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITFD
(FORMERLY KN WN AS FINEOTEX

( /j 111\("”
urendrakumar Tibrewala

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00218394




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2025
CIN No. U24290MH2020PTC345418

A, Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
No. of Shares Amount| No. of Shares Amount
Balance as the beginning of the reporting year 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
Add: Changes in Equity Capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
B. Other Equity
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Reserves & Surplus
Retained Total
Earnings
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (A) 4,487.73 448773
Additions during the year;
Profit for the year 242191 2,421.91
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax:
Remeasurciment of the defined benefit plans - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2023-2024 (B) 2,421.91 2,421.91
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:
Final dividend For The Year Ended 31 st March 2023 (450.00) (450.00)
Interim Dividend for the year ended 31st March 2024 (300.00) (500.00)
Total (C) (950.00) (950.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (D)=(A+B+C) 5,059.64 5,959.64
Additions during the vear:
Profit for the year 1,283.62 1,283.62
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax:
Remensurement of the defined benefit plans - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2024-2025 (E) 1,283.62 1,283.62
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:
Inierim Dividend for the year ended 3 1st March 2023 (275.00) (275.00)
Total (F) (275.00) (275.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (D+E+F) 6,968.26 6,968.26
CORPORATE INFORMATION 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS Jtodl

As per our report of even date attached
ForASL & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 101921W

sm%ﬁ?%: | ‘

Pariner
Merhership No. 136484

Date : 20th May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Direc
FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LI
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEQ/

g/ﬁ‘w’"&

Surendrakumar Tibrewala
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00218394

ECIALITIES

Sgnjay Tibrewala
Execulive Director & CFO
DIN; Qs
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FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

2.1

2.2

23

CORPORATE INFORMATION
FSPL Spevialities Private Limited (Formerly Known as Fineotex Specialities Private Limited) is a private limited by sharcs domiciled
in India, incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. It is wholly owned subsidiary of listed company Fineolex
Chemical Limited. Its registered office is situated at 42,43 Manorama Chambers, S.V. Road Bandra (West) Mumbai - 400050 India.
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Textile chemicals, auxiliaries and specialty chemicals
STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the Significant Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements. These policics have
been consistently applied to all the years prescuted, unless otherwise stated.
BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
a)  Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Corm pany (also called standalone financial statements) prepaced
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).
b)  The Standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th May, 2025.
¢)  Current versus Non-Current classification
All ass=ts and liabilitics have been classified as Current or Non Current as per the Company’s normal operation eycle i.e. twelve months
and other criteria sct out in the Schedule I1I of the Act,
d) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under historical cost convention in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including Indian Accounting Standards
notified there under, except for the following:
- Certain financial assets and liahilities (including derivative instrument) measured at fair value;
- Assels held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amaount or fair value less cost fo sell;
- Delined benefit plans - plan asscis measured at fair value

USE OF ESTIMATES

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of asscts and
liabilitics that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical expericnce
and other faclors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include vseful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assels and invesiments, impairment of trade
receivables, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from conlracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promiscd goods or services to a customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variahle consideraiion)
allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account
of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on the
expecied value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amaount
will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

The Company does not adjust short-term advances received from the customer for the effects of significant financing component if it is
expecied at the contract inception that the promised good or service will be transferred to the customer.
a) Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The performance
obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the
customer, as may be specified in the contract,




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025
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2.5

b)

€)

d)

Export Incentives

Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally when sharcholders approve the
dividend.

Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the busis of claims admitted/cxpected to be admitted and to the extent that there is no uncertainty
in receiving the claims.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

a)

b)

c)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial siatements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is company’s functional and presentation currency.

Initial Recognisation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the dales of the transactions. Exchange difference
arising on foreign exchange transaction seltled during the year are recognized in the Stutemient of profit and loss of the year,
Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance sheet date

Moneiary assels and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics are re-translated into functional currency at the exchange rate
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non manetary assets and liahilities that are measured based on a historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translaied. Exchange differences arising out of these transaction are cha ged to the profit and loss

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

a)

b)

c)

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

i)  Recognition and measurement

Frechold land is cauried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulaled depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenses dircctly attributable to the acquisition of the assets, The cost of an item of
a PPE compriscs its purchase price including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly allribulable
cost of bringing the asscts to its working condition of its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebales are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price.

ii)  Subsequent expenditure
Expenditure incurred on substantial expansion up to the date of commencement of commercial production are capilalized.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is
probable that future ecenomic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The currying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derccognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital Work-In-Progress And Pre-Operative Expenses During Construction Period

Capital work-in progress includes expenditure directly related to consiruction and incidental thereto. The same is transferred or allocated

to respective Property, Plant and Equipment on their completion / commencement of commercial production.

Investment Property

D) Invesiment property is property held either to earn renfal income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the
ordinary cotirse of business, use in the production or supply of gaods or services or for adminisirative purposcs. Upon initial
recognition, an invesiment property is measured at cost, Suhsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment lasses, if any,

The Management daes not expect any impairment in the value of Investment Property, hence no depreciation have been chargad
in respect of the same.

i) Subscquent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benelits
assaclated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

iii)  All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred,

iv)  Any gain or loss on disposal of an investiment property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

’ , z;I\ US4
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FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

d) Intangible assets
Intangible asscis are held on the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss if any.

2.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS

2.7

2.8

The Company’s non-financial ossets other than invenlories and deferred tax assel s, are reviewed at each reporting date to delermine whether
there is an indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assct’s recoverable aniount is estimated.

For impairment testing, asscts that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the smallest group of assets that gencrates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects curront market assessiments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losscs
are recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews at reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation is caleulated to systematically allocate the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assct over the estimated useful
life.

Depreciation is computed on pro-rata basis with using Straight Line Method (SLM) over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the
management and is charged to the Stalement of Profit and Loss as per the requirement of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful life of items of property, plant and equipment is mentioned below:

Asset Years

Factory Building 30 Years
Leasehold Right 38.70 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 To 20 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Electrical Installation & Equipments 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates items certain of property plant
and equipment (as mentioned below) over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1T to
the Companies Act, 2013 (Schedule IIT). The management belicves that these lives prescribed under Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013
(Schedule ITT). The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which
the assets are likely to be used.
The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of pruperty, plant and equipment and the depreciation methods are reviewed at the end
of each financial ycar. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an account ing
cstimate,
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily and a financial liahility or equity instrument of another
entity.
I.  Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement

i) The Company recognizes 2 financial assct in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

b)

ii)

iii)

All financial asscts are recognised initially at fair value and for those instruments that are not subscquently measured at FVTPL,
plus/minus transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assels,

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference between the
fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the
fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a
valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (ie. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fair value
and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the
extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor thal market participants take into account when pricing the financial

assel.

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Costs of certain
unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair vaiue because of a wids range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

In case of Investments in Equity instruments, at initial recognition , the Company, makes an irrevocable election ,to susbequently
measure , investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT or FVTPL (Refer Note 4 & 33 for further details).

The Company makes such eleciion on an instrument by instrument basis,

Trade receivable are carried at original invoice price as the sales arrangements do not conlain any significant financial component.
Purchase or sales of financial asscis that required delivery of asscis within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the COmpany commits to purchase or
sell the assets.

Subsequent measurement:

For subscquent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

i.

ii.

The Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and

The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Bascd on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assels into the following categories:
Financial assels measured at amortized cost

Financial assels measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (F VTOCI)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A finaneial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

b)  The contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial asscts of the Company (Refer
note 33 for further details). Such financial asscts are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective intercst
method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the
effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial
recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of
the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial assct to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding elfect of the amortization under effective intercst method is recognized as inferest income over the relevant
period of the financial asset. The same is included under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amortized cost of a financial assct is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

c)

a)

iii.

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:
a)  The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting conlractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b)  The contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified daies to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and intcrest on the principal amount outstanding,

This category applies to certain investiments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value at each reporting date.Fair value changes are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income and impairment losses and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclussified from equity
to Staiement of Profit and Loss

Further, Investments in Equity instruments, neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration under a business
combination, are recognized , at initital recognition, through irrevocably election, to be subsequently measured at FVTOCI
(Refer Note 4 & 33 for further details).

Pursuant to such irrevacable election, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments are recognized in OCL

However, the Company recognizes dividend income fram such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
can be measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial asscts, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is not reclassified from
the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained
earnings within equity.
Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as ¢aplained above. This is a residual
category applied to all other investments of the Company cxcluding investments in subsidiary and associale companies (Refer
note 33 for further details). Such financial asscts are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assct or part of a group of similar financial asscls) is derecagnized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when any of the following occurs:

i

ii.

ii.

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
without malerial delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through® arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

The Company neither transfers nor refains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the
financial asset.

In cuscs where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assct, but
retaing control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize such financial assct to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. In thal case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company bas retained.

On Derccognition of a financial asset,(excepl as mentioned in 2.8 (I) (b) ii above for financial assets measured at(FVTOCI) the
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Reclassification

Financial asscls are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business model for managing those
financial assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from the reclussification date which is the first day of
immediately next reporting period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109
— Financial Instruments,
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€)

II.

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:
Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any in accordance
with option available in Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements,
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrving amount of the investment is asscssed and the carrying amount of the investment
is assessed and writlen down immediately to its recoverable amount.
On disposal of invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
- Financial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised Cost €.g., loan, debt sceurity, deposits, and bank balance.
- Trade Reccivables
The company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a
significant financing component.
The application simplified approach does not require the company to track change in risk. Rather, it recogniscs impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The company uscs a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivable. The provision mairix based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date,
historically observed default rate updated and change in the forward looking estimates arc analysed.
Financial Liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are clussified as either financial liability or as equity in accordance with subsiance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
a) Equity instruments:
An equity instruments is any contact the evidences a residval interest in the assets of an entity after deducling all of its liabilitics.
Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised a the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
b) Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial liabilities are measured initially at amortised cost, unless at initial recognition they are measured at fair value through
Profit & Loss ("FVTPL"). in case of barrowings, trade and other payables, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently,
these liabilities are held at amortised cost using the elfective intercst method.
c) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expircs .When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially dilTerent terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derec ognition of the original liability and
the recognition of the new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the statement of Profit and
L(:!.\ S,
d)  Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial asscls and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforccable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention to seltle on a net basis to realise the asset and seltle the liahility
simultaneously.

2.9 INVENTORIES

i)

Raw Material and Packing Material
Raw Materials and packing material are carried at lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by ilem basis,
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2.10

2.11

2,12

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

In determining the cost of raw materials and packing materials First in First Out Method (FIFO) is used. Costof inventory comprises all
costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax author ities) and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory to their present location and condition.
ii)  Work in Progress
Work-in-progress is valued at input material cost plus conversion cost as applicable.
iii) Finished Goods
Finished goods are valued at the lower of net realisable vulue and cost (including prime cost, non-refundahle taxcs and duties and other
overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition), computed on estimated cost,
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Non-current asscts or disposal groups are clus<ified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use Such assels or disposal groups are classified only when bath the conditions are satisfied:
i, The sale is highly probable, and

ii.  The asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and cusiomary
for sale of such assets,

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification as held for sale, and actions required to complete the plan of sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

oncurrent assets or disposal group are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.
Upon Classification Non- current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less

costs to sell.
Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing Costs that are interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds and is measured with
reference fo the effective intercst rate applicable to the respective barrowing. Borrowing costs include interest cost measured at EIR and
exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interes! cost,
Borrowing Costs that are altributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asscts are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets,
wherever applicable, till the assets are ready for their intended use. Such capitalisation is done only when it is probable that the asset will
result in future economic benefits and the costs can be measured reliably. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended and charged to
stafement when active development is interrupted Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions are
safisfied:

i.  Expenditure for the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assel is being incurred;

ii. Borrowing cosls are being incurred; and

iil.  Activities that are necessary to prepare the assct for its intended use are in Progress

A qualifying asset is one which necessarily takes substantial period to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue aceount,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities for wages, sataries, compensated absences including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be scitled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employces render the related services are recognised in respect of employces’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilitics are to be scttled. The liabilitics are
prescnied as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

W
(1
/i
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Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-cmployment schemes:

A.  Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity; and
B.  Defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or assct recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit geatuity plans is prosent value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporling periad less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculared annually by
acluaries using the projected unit credit method.

The prescnt value of the defined benefit obligations is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on governinent honds that have terms approximaling to the terms of the related obligation.

The net intercst cost is calculated by applying the discount rale to the net kalance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets, This cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss

Remessurcment gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, direcily in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained ew nings in the statement of changes in equity and
in the balance sheet.

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendment or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.
Defined Contribution Plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered funds as per the local regulations. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounied for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an assel to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payment is available.

2.13 ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME
Income Taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax pay cble on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in Deferred Tax Asscts and Liabilities attributable to temporary differciices and fo unused tax
losses.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period ie.
as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It ¢stablishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounls expected to be paid to the tax autharities.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measurcd at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics, based
on the rafes and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generales
tunable income. Current tax itemns are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax asscts and liabilities are offset only if. the Company :

i) has legally enforceable right to set ofT the recognised amounts; and

i) Iniends either to seitle on a net besis, or to realise the 2ssct and setile the liahility sinultanecusly.”
Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences betweesn the carrying amounts of the assels and liahilities for finuncial
reporting purposcs and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purpose,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporury differcnces only if it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax asscls are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probuble that the relited tax benefits will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
tuture tuxable profits improves Uniecognised deferred tax nssets are reassessed at each reporting dafe and recgonised to the extent that it has
becuine probable that future taxable profits will be ayailahle against which they can be used, ’
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacied
or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax Assels and Liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilitics and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current lax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offsct and intends either to setile on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and Deferred Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Any tax credit including MAT credit available is recognised as Deferred Tax to the extent that it is probable that fufure taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised. The said asset is created by way of cradit to the Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown under the head deferred tax assct

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Asscls is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient uxable profit will be available to allow all or pait of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilised. Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogniscd to the extent that it has became probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assct o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if] the Company :

i) has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

i)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorily on the same taxable

entity.

a)  Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation and a reliahle estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement. Provisions
are not recognised for fufure operating losses,
Provisions are measured at the present value of mansgement’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

b) Contingent Liability
Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of:

. A present obligation arising from the past evenls, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requized to
seitle the obligation;

ii. A present obligatinn arising from the past events, when no reliable estimale is possible;

lii. A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

2.14 LEASES

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the
leuse. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assct or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or asscls, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a Lessee

a) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assats at the commencement date of the Jease (i.e. the dale the underlying assct is availahle
for use). Right-of-use assels are meusured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment Iosses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lcase payments made at or before the commencement dale loss any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assols are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the cstimated useful lives of the as sels,
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2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

In respect of Leasehold Land, the Management does not expect any impairment hence no depreciation have been charged in respect the
SHIME.

[f ownership of the leascd asset transfers to the Company at the end of the leuse term or the cost refiects the exercise of a purchise
option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use a@ssets are also subject to impairment. Refer to note 2.6 above for accounting policics on impairment of nonfinancial

Gssals,

b)  Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease lahilities meusured at the present value of leuse payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments primarily comprise of fixed payments.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uscs its fncremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
beciuse the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of Jease liahililics
is inureased to reflect the accietion of inferest and reduced for the lease payments made.

t)  Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applics the short-term leuse recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office spaces and certain equipment (i.e.
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It alsa
applics the lease of low-value assels recognition excmption to leases of office equipment that are considesed to be low value, Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value asscts are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a Lessor
Leases in which the Campany does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assct are classified as operating
leases. Rental income from operating lease is recogrised on a straight-line basis over the tern of the relevant lease.

Leuses ate classified as Finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the le-cz.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivabics at the Company’s net investiment in the leases, Finance leqse
incowe is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investinent oulstanding in respect of thie
lease.
EARNING PER SHARE
a)  Basic Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share is caleulated by dividing the profil attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares oulstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s earnings per share is the net prodit for
the period afler deducting preference dividends, if any, and any attributable distribution tax thereto for the period.
b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share adjusis the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the afler income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of
additional equity sharcs that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cush receipts or payments and item of incone or expenses associated with investing or
financing Cash Flows. The cash flows frum operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand depasits with
banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafis which are
repayable on demand as these form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

DIVIDEND

The Company recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Company when the dividend is authorised and the dividend is no
longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corposate laws in India, a dividend is authorised when it is approved by the shareholdets.
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

ROUNDING OFF

All amounts disclosed in the financial stalements and noies have been rounded off to the nearest rupees in Lakhs, unicss otherwise stated.

B
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2.19

2.20

2.2

[

2.22

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Certain accasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such
that its disclosure iniproves the undarstanding of the performance of the Campany, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional
item and accordingly, disclesed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

OPERATING CYCLE

All assets and liabilities have been clussified as eurrent or non-current as per cach Company’s nonmnal operating cycle and other eriteria st
out in the Schedule I11 to the Act

SEGMENT REPORTING

As the Company has only ene primary business aciivity, Segnient reporting is not applicable.

RECENT PRONOUNCEMENT

Ministry of Corporate Aflairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendinents to the existing standards under Companies (Indiun Accounting
Standards) Rules as jssued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified ind AS — 117 Insurance
contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024,
The Company has reviewed the new pronouncemenis bused on its evaluation has determined that it docs not have any significant impact in
its financial statements.
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NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(Rs. In Lakhs)

DESCRIPTION GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT (AT COST) ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / NET
AMORTIZATION CARRYING
AMOUNT
As At Additions / | Deductions / AsAt As At For The | Deductions/ AsAt As At
April 01, Transfers | Adjustments | March 31, April 01, Year Adjustments | March 31, March 31,

2024 2025 2024 2025 2025

(A) Property, Plant &

Equipmnents

Leuse Hold Rights 1,261.01 - - 1,261.01 8.17 32.68 - 40.85 1,220.16

Plant & Machinery 1.053.35 527.46 - 1,580 8] 150,14 92,09 - 24223 1,338 58

Electrical Installation & 61.90 32.93 - 94 .83 2083 . 827 18.46 10.64 84.19

Equipments

Furniture & Fixturcs 5545 4426 - 99.75 24.43 8.13 20.15 12.4] 87.34

Office Equipments 22,52 0.85 - 23.37 7.86 4.55 - 12.41 10.96

Tactory Building 1,944.79 - - 1,944.79 16.16 64.82 - 80.98 1,863.81

Tolal - Property, Plant & 4,399.06 605,50 - 5,004.56 227.59 210,54 38.61 399.52 4,605.04

Equipmnents

(B) Capital Work in - 649.71 - 649.71 - - - = 649.71

Prougress

TOTAL (A)+(B) 4,399.06 1,255.21 - 5,654.27 227.59 210.54 38.61 399.52 5,254.75

FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

NOTE 3: PROPEKRTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(Rs. In Lakhs)

DESCRIPITON GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT (AT COST) ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION / NET
AMORTIZATION CARRYING
AMOUNT
AsAt Additions/ | Deductions / As At As At For The | Deductions / AsAt As At
April 01, Transfers | Adjusiments | March 31, April 01, Year Adjustments | March 31, March 31,

2023 2024 2023 2024 2024

(A) Property, Plant &

Equipmuents

Lise Hold Righis - 1,261.01 - 1,261.01 - 8.17 - 8.17 1,252.84

Plant & Machinery 1,031.33 22.02 - 1,053.35 8063 69.51 - 150.14 903.21

Electrical Installation & 52.07 9.83 - 61.90 9.83 1100 - 20083 41.07

Equi:n'l'u:l'lrs

Furniture & Fixiures 53.33 | 2.16 - 3549 13.01 11.42 - 2443 3106

Oftice Equipimients 19.00 352 - 22:52 3.63 4.23 - 7.86 14.66

Factory Building ’ - 1,944.79 - 1.944.79 - 16.16 - 16.16 1,928 63

Total - Property, Plant & 1,155.73 3,243.33 - 4,399.06 107.10 120.49 - 227.59 4,171.47

Equipmnents )

(B) Capital Work in - - - - - - - - -

Progress

TOTAL (A)JH(B) 1,155.73 3.243.33 - 4,399.06 107.10 120.49 - 227.59 4,i71.47
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NOTE 4 : FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS (NON - CURRENT)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount
A, Other Investments
Carried at fair value through profit or loss
In Mutual Funds (Quoted and fully paid up) 1.269.515 52.30) 16,50,739.491 696.06
Total (A) : 52.30 696.06
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investment - At Cost 50.00 617.47
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investmeni - At market value 52.30 696.06
NOTE 5: FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (NON-CURRENT)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Security Deposit 51.97 0.20
Fixed Deposils maturing after 12 months 210.00 -
(Refer Note i Below )
Total 261.97 0.20
Note :
i.  Fixed Deposits maturing After 12 months includes Receipts Pledged/Lien with Banlks: .
(Rs. In Lakhis)
Particulars As at Asat’
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Towards Overdrall facility availed 210.00 -
NOTE 6: NON CURRENT - TAX ASSET (NET)
(Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Advaice tax (Net of Provision) 121.44 0.95
Total 121.44 0.95
NOTE 7: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured Considered Good unless stated otherwise)
(Rs. In Lakhis)
Particulars Asat i As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital Advance 784.10 -
Total 784.10 -
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NOTE §: INVENTORIES

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(As taken, valued and certitied by the management)
Raw Materials 275.70 371.17
Packing Materials 6.26 6.12
Finished Goods 39.07 43.21
Total 321.03 420.50
Note:
For Method of Valuation of Invenlories refer Note No. 2.9
Inventories pledged as seeurity for borrowings.
NOTE 9: FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivables
Unsecured - Considered Good 32145 645.96
Total 321.45 645.96

Trade Receivable ageing schedule

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from: date of transactions
. As at March 31, 2025
Particulars 5 h
< 6 Months montis |4 5 years | 2-3 years >3 Years Total
to 1 year :
Undisputed
Considered Good 321.45 - - - - 321.45
Total 321.45 - - - - 321.45
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024
< 6 Months Sitionths 1-2 years | 2-3 years >3 Years Total
to 1 year
Undisputed
Considered Good 645.96 - - - - 645.96
Total 645.96 - - - - 645.96
NOTE 10: FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Rs. In Lakhis)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 Marzh 31,2024
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 3.77 44,13
Cash on Hand 14.54 7.98
Total 18.31 521
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NOTE 11: FINANCIAL ASSETS -BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fixed Deposits maturing between 3 to 12 months 217.15 421.00
(Refer Note i. Below)
Total 217.15 421.00
i.  Fixed Deposits maturing between 3 to 12 montlis includes Receipts Pledged/Lien with Banks:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Towards Bank Guarantee (Also refer Note no 29) 6.11 1.00
Bank Deposit Have Been pledged with banks against various credit facilities availed by the 220.00 220.00
Company
NOTE 12: FINANCIAL ASSETS: LOANS
(Unsecured,considered Good unless otherwise Stated)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans to Other parties
Considered good 466.75 -
Total 466.75 -
NOTE 13: FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (CURRENT)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest accrued but not due 4.50 6.79
Security Deposit (Refer Note 1. Below) 7.14 58.14
Total 11.64 64.93

i. Securily deposits includes dues for leasing of premises fiom holding company Rs. 5.64 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 5.46 Lakhs) (also refer Note no.36).

NOTE 14: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2424
Advances Other than capital advances
Advances to Suppliers 6.49 17.26
Advance to Employees 0.56 1.40
Balances with Government Authorities 31.31 41.95
Prepaid Expenscs 6.92 5.49
Others
Other Receivable - 2.45
Income Tax Refind Receivable AY 2023-24 17.69 -
Total 62.97 68.55
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NOTE 15: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorised

10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 100.00 100.00
TOTALAUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 100.00 100.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Un

10,00.000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 100.00 100.00
TOTAL ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 1090.00 100.00
a)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding :

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Sharcs at the beginning 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
Add: lssued during the year - % i -
Shares at the end 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00

b) Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a face value Rs. 10/~ per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders will be entitled to receive any of the remaining usset of the company in proportion to the
number of equity sharcs held by the sharcholders, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. However no such preferential amount

eaist currently.

¢}  Shares held by the Holding Company :

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Fineutex Chemical Limited 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
d) Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares each :
Name of the Shareholder As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
No. of Shares %o No. of Shares %
Fineolex Chemical Limited and its Nominee 10,60,000 100.00% 10,006,600 100.00%

¢)  Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter’s Name

No. of shares

% of Total
shares d

% Change
uring the year

Ing/ (Dec)
Current year
Fineotex Chemical Limited 10,00,000 100.002% a
Previous Year
Fineotex Chemical Limited 10,00,0460 100,062 -
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NOTE 16: OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves & Surplus

Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at March 31,2023 (A) 4,487.73 4,487.73
Additions during the vear:

Profit for the ycar 2,421.91 2.421.91
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax: "

Remeusurement of the defined benelit plans - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2023-2024 (B) | 2,421.91 2,421.91
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:

Final dividend For The Year Ended 31 st March 2023 (450.00) (450.00)
Interim Dividend for the year ended 31st March 2024 (500.00) (300.00)
Total C (950.00) (950.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (D)=(A+B+C) 5,959.64 5,959.64
Additions during the vear:

Profit for the year 1,283.62 1,283.62
Item:s of OCI for the year, net of tax:

Remeusurement of the defined benefit plans - ”
Total Comnprehensive Income for the year 2624-2025 (E) 1,283.62 1,283.62
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Owners:

Imerim Dividend for the year ended 3 Ist Maich 2025 (275.00) (275.00)
Total (F) (275.00) (275.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (D+E4F) 6,968.26 6,968.26

a.  Description of Nature and Purpose of the Reserves
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the accumulated profits carmed by the Company till date, less transter to general reserves. dividend (incleding dividend
distribution tax) and other distributions made to the shareholders,

b.  Dividend Paid during the Year
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at I
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Corporate Dividend Paid During the year to Equity Share Holders
Final Dividend Paid For FY 2022 - 23 - 450.00
Dividend Per Fully Paid Up Share - 43.00
Interim Dividend Paid For FY 2023 -2024 .- 500.00
Dividend Per Fully Paid Up Share # 50.00
Interim Dividend Paid For FY 2023-2025 - 275.00 -
Dividend Per Fully Paid Up Share - 27.5
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Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

NOTE 17: INCOME TAX
A, COMPONENTS OF INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I.  Income Tax recognised in statement of profit & loss
Current Tax
Current yoar 243.50 489.00
Sub-Total 243.50 489.00
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)
Origination and reversal of temporary diffsrence 30.20 34.95
Sub-Total 30.20 34.95
Income Tax Expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 273.70 523.95
B. RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATES
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Agat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,560.05 2.945.87
Enacted Income Tax Rate in India 17.16% 17.16%
Income Tax expense calculated at enacted corporate tax rate 268.00 506.00
Effect of income that is exempt from tax (0.03) (5.37)
Effect of Fair Value Gains / (Loss) 13.09 (6.37)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 2.55 2.62
Effect of Income of other heads chargeable at lower rates (1.71) (1.03)
Effect of Income of other heads chargeable at higher ratcs 0.86 13.67
Others (37.85) (20.12)
Total 244.91 489.38
Effective tax rate for the year 15.70% 16.61%
C. MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Net deferred tax Recognised in Recognised Net deferred tax
asset / (liabilities) profit and loss in other asset / (liabilities)
as on comprehensive as on
1st April, 2024 income 31st March, 2025
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment (40.99) (43.29) - (84.28)
Employce benelits - - - -
Other Current Azsets 0.08 - - 0.08
[nvestments - FVIPL (13.49) 13.09 - (0.40)
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (54.40) (30.20) - (84.60)




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025
MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Net deferred tax Recognised in Recognised Net deferred tax
asset / (liabilities) profit and loss in other asset / (liabilities)
as on comprehensive as on
Ist April, 2023 income 31st March, 2024
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment (19.53) (21.46) - (40.99)
Employee benelits - - - -
Other Current Azscts 0.08 - - 0.08
Investments - FVIPL - (13.49) - {13.49)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (19.45) (34.95) - (34.40)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Deferred Tax Assets
Other Current Assets 0.08 0.08
0.08 0.08
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment 84.28 40.99
Investments - FVTPL 0.40 13.49
Total 84.68 54.48
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) (84.60) (54.40)
NOTE 18: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Secured
Bank Overdralt 17.14
Unsecured
Louns from Related party (also refer note no 36) 656.94 -
Total 674.08 -

Note :

The above bank credit facility is sceured against Fixed Deposits and pledged/lien on securities held by the Company (Also Refer Note No 5 and 11).

Current borrowing from bank are secured By Hypothecation of Curient assels of the Company both present and fuiure.

NOTE 19: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

(Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Undisputed
MSME (Refer Note Below) 3.75 104,94
Others 36.26 311,14
Total 40.01 416.08
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Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

Note :

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2024-25, to the extent the
Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers™ regarding their status under the Act.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Principal and inferest ammount remaining unpaid 3.75 104.94
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - -
(iii) Intercst paid by the Company in terms of Scction 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
_ supplier beyond the appoinied day
(iv) Interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appoinied day during the period) but without adding interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs Act, 2006
(v) Inierest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
(vi) Intercst remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dafte when the = -
interest ducs as above are actually paid to the small enterpriscs
Total 3.75 104.94

Trade payable aging schedule

Rs. In Lakhs)

Outstanding for foliowing periods from date of transactions
Particulars As at March 31, 2025
<1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 Years Total
Undisputed
i) MSME 3.75 - - 3.75
ii)  Others 36.26 - - 36.26
Total 40.01 - - 40.01
Trade payable aging scheduie
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024
<1Year | 1-2years 2-3 years > 3 Years Total
Undisputed
i) MSME 104.94 - - 104.94
ii)  Others 311.14 - . 311.14
' Total 416.08 - - 416.08
NOTE 20: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Rs. In Lakhs),
Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance From Customers 10.62 -
Statutory Liahilities 6.60 212
Payables to Employees 4.93 5.09
Other Payables 1.49 1.30
Tetal 23.64 8.71
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Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

NOTE 21: PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment 0.84 0.80
Bonus 2.43 2.10
Total 3.27 2.90
NOTE 22: REVENUE FROM OPERATION
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products 4,139.47 7,922.69
Total 4,139.47 7,922.69
NOTE 22A: REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography
Domestic Market 4,139.47 7,922.69
Total 4,139.47 7,922.69

Note:

i.  The amounts of receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period . There is no significant financing component in any
transaction with the customers.

ii.  Remaining Performance Obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the uggregate amount of the transactior: price yet to be recognized as at the end
of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue.

The Company has applied the practical expedicut under Paragraph 121(a) of Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and

accordingly has not di
at 31st March 2025,

NOTE 23: OTHER INCOME

sclosed the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that remain unsatisfied as

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest [ncome from Financial Assct Carried at Amortised Cost 80.02 31.29
Other Non - Operating Income
Gains on Foreign Currency transactions 0 0.64
Net gain on sale / measurcment of financial asset at FVITPL - -
Profit On sale of Investment Measured at FVTPL 115.50 218.46
Mark to Market Investment Measured at FVTPL (76.28) 37.11
Other Income 11.49 0.25
Total 130.73 287.75
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Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

NOTE 24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw Material and Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 377.28 250.14
Add: Purchises 2,139.64 493823
2,516.92 5,188.37
Less: Closing Stoeck 281.96 377.28
Total 2,234.96 4,811.09
NOTE 25: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Stock :

Finished Goods 43.21 118 86
Less : Closing Stock :

Finished Goods 39.07 43.21
NET CHANGE iN INVENTORIES 4.14 75.65
NOTE 26: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 77.87 77.20
Stall Welfare Expenscs 5.96 4.33
Total §3.83 81.53

NOTE 27: FINANCE COST

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Intcrest Expenses on Financial Liabilities carried at amortised Cost
On Borrowing . 10.65 1.15
Bank and Other Financial Charges 11.87 8.05
Total 22.52 9.20

<!




FSPL SPECJALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)
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NOTE 28: OTHER EXPENSES
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Power, Fuel and Utilitics 57.02 5223
Leuse Rent / Hire Charges 13.43 15.19
Cammission 19.00 19.00
Repairs & Maintenance on :
Plant and Machinery 0.19 2.41
Other Repairs 4.26 8.03
Insurance 11.94 16.90
Professional Fees 18.00 1.12
Payment to Auditors :
Audit Fees 3.00 3.00
Other Services 2.97 2.00
Rescarch & Development Expenscs 0.06 0.28
Security Charges 26.08 17.82
Travelling and Conveyance 0.88 0.72
Qulward Freight Charges 4.01 4.32
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility 14.70 15.00
(Also Refer Note No. 30)
Miscellaneous expenses 17.23 8.60
Total 192.77 166.62
NOTE 29: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
1 Contingent Liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Disputed Tax demands )
- Income Tax A.Y. 2024-25 (Pending rectification) 247.73 -
Total 247.73 -
2 Bank Guarantee (Refer Note no 5 & 11)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Quistanding Bank Guarantees issued by Bankers 6.00 1.00
Total 6.00 1.00
3 Commitments (Refer Note No.7)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated Amount of Capital Commitiements remaining to be exccuted on Capital account 1,047.91 176.75
Less: Advances Paid 784.10 -
Net Capital Commitments 263.81 176.75
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NOTE 30: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Nature of CSR Activities :
As per Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 20624

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Comipanies Act, 2013 53.64 35.71
Amount approved by the Board to be spent 33.64 35.71
Amount Spent during the vear

Construction / Acquisition of any Asset - -

On purposes other than above 14.70 15.00
Total amount spent 14.70 15.00
Statement of unspent amount under section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
Opening Balance - (Excess) / Short Spent in Earlier Yeurs 13.68 {7.03)
Amount Deposited in Sepcified Fund of Sch VII - -
Amoiint required to be spent 53.64 35.71
Amaoiint Spent 14.70 15.00
Closing Balance 52.62 13.68

NOTE 31: EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Rs. In Lakhisj

Pariiculars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit afler tax available for equity sharcholders as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1,283.62 2.421.91
Weigited Average No. of Equity Shares of Face Value Rs. 10/- each 10,00,000 10,006,600
Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted 128.36

242.19

NOTE 32: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective for Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value and support the growth of the Company and to optimize
capital strueture to reduce the cost of capital, The Company determines the capital requirement based on long term and straiegic investment and
capital expenditure plais. The funding requirements are met through a mix of equity and operating cash flows generated. The relevant quantitative

information on the aforcsaid parameters are disclosed in these financial statements,

The company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio :

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars ‘ear ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total inlerest bearing financial liabilities 674.08 -
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents 1831 32.11
Adjusted Net Debt 655.77 (52.11)
Toral Equiity 7.068.26 6,059.64
Adjusted Equity

Net Debts to Equity Ratio 0.09 (0.01)
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Notes to accounts forming part of financial statcment for the year ended March 31 2025
NOTE 33: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
(a) Financial Assets and Liabilities
The currying value of tinancial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Financial Assets

Amortised Cost

Trade Receivables 32145 645.96
Cash & Cash Equivalenis 18.31 52.1i
Other Financial Assets C 11.64 64.93

’ ' ' Total 351.40 763.00

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost’

Botrowings 674.08 -
Trade Payables 40.01 416.08
Total 714.09 416.08

Fair valuation of financial asscts and liabilities with short terim maturities is considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Fair Value Hierarchy

unobsery able and consist of the following three levels:
Level 1 - Inpuis are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liahilities.
Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that ace obscrvable for the asseis or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - Inpuis are not bused on obscrvable market data (unobservable inputs).
The Financial Instruments included in Level 2 of fair vaiue hierarchy have been valued using quotes available for similar assets and liabilities
in the active market,
For Assets and Liabilities which are measured at Fair Values as at the Balance Sheet date, the classification of fair value caleuiations by
calegory is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024

Financial Assets

Level 1
Investments in quoted mutual fund units 52.30 696.06
Sceurity Deposit Given ; 5.64 5.46
Total 57.94 701.52

Measurement of Fair Values :

The fair value of the financial asscts and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exciianged in a current transaction
between willing partics, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair valves:

- The fair values of investment in shates is the share price quated on recognised stock exchangs as on the reporting date of batance sheat
- The fair values of investment in mutual fund is the N.A.V as on the reporting dafe of balance sheet

- The fair values of interest fice security deposit given / accepted is estimated by discounting cash flows using rates currently availahle
for instruments with similar terms, credit risks and remaining maturitics. Management regularly assesses 2 range of reusonably possible
alieruatives for those significant observable inputs and detcrmines their impact on the total fair value
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NOTE 34: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company’s activities expose it to vasiety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Company has a risk
management policy which covers risks associated with the financial assets and liabilitics. The risk management policy is approved by the Board
of Directors. The focus of the risk management commitiee is to assess the unpredictability of the financial environment and to mitigate potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is ¢apused to and how the Company manages the risk and the impact of hedge
accounting in the financial statements,

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Trade Rzceivables and other {inancial Ageing analysis Diversification of bank deposits,
= & B !
Assets credit limit and letter of credit
Market risk - foreign currency risk Recognised financial assats Very limited Exposure Company manages through

2 Tyl I par £ 12
liahilities not dernominated in Rupees natural Hedge

Market risk - Security prices risk | Investment in Shares and mutval funds Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

Y

The Company risk management is carried out by policics approved by the board of directors. The board provides wrilten principles for overall risk
management, as well as policics covering specific arcas. There is o change in objectives, polices and process for managing the risk and methods
used to measure the risk as compared to previous year.

(a)

(1)

Market Risk:-

Markei risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair vaiues or future cash flows thet may result from a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a finaacial instrument may chiangs as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign cuirency exchange rates, equity
prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market 1isk is attributable to all market risk seusitive financial
instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, puyubles and loans and borrowings. The objective of market
risk management is o avoid excessive exposure in our foreign CUTTelcy revenuss and costs

(i) Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk
Interest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuzie because of changes in
market interest rates. The conipany’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company’s borrowings.
both shart tenn and long term obligations with fixed and floating interest rates. However the companics expasure to foating rate
borrowings are very limited 1o its size of operation .
The company is also exposed to interest rate risk on its financial assets that include fixed deposits (which are part of cash and cash
equivalents) since al! these are generally for short durations, there is no significant intercst rate risks paraining to these deposits.
Sensitivity analysis to interest rate risk
The company doesn’t acccunt for any fixed rate financial asscts or financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss Therelore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or Inss

(i) Market Risk - Price Risk( Sceurities)
Other price risk is the risk thal the fair value of a financial instrument will flugtuate due to changes in market traded prive,
Exposure to Price Risk
The Company does make deposit with the banks as margin money against the borrowing facility provided by the banks. Deposit is made
in fixed rale instrument. In visw of this it is not susceptible to market price risk. arising from changes in interest rates or market yields
which may impact the return and value of the investments. '

(iii) Market Risk - Currency Risk -

¢ company is having import and exports as well. Accordingly the company is expose currency risk on account of its trade

The comp. having import and export 1. Accordingly th pany posed fo y risk t of its trad
pay ables and trade receivables in forcign currency. The functional currency of the compuny is Indian Rupees. The Company follows
a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible . The exposed Foreign currency is not substantial to the
oncration of company .

Credit Risk

Crediv Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customier or counterpary to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principaily frou the Company’s receivables from custemers.
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(c)

Trade Receivables

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial
statements, industry information, busingss intelligence and in some cases bank references.

Trade Receivables of the Company are typically unsccured,exvept to the extent of the sceurity deposits received from the customers or
financial guarantees provided by the market organizers in the business. Credit Risk is maraged through credit approvals and periodic
monitoring of the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the nonmal course of business. The Company
perforins ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial coadition and monitors the creditworthiness of its customers to which it grants
credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company has no concentration of Credit Risk as the customer base is geographicaily
distribuled in India.

LExpected credit loss for trade receivable:

The allowance for impairment of Trade receivables ds cicatled to the extent and as and when required, based upon the expecied collectability
of accounts receivables. On account of adoption of Ind-AS 109, the Company uses lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing
the impainnent loss. For this purpose, the Company uscs a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount for trade reccivables.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends, The provision matrix takes into account external and irternal credit risk
factors and historical experience / current facts available in relation to defaults and delays in collection thercof. Accordingly bused on the
prevision matrix there is no expected credit loss to the company and accordingly there is no provision for doubtful debis

Other Financial Assets

The company maintains exposure in Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks, Equity Sharcs and Investments in Mutual
Funds. The Company has diversified portfolio of investment with various number of counterpartics which has good credit ratings, good
reputation and hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits set for each counterparty based on financial position, credit rating and post
experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Comipany.

Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade reccivable:

With regards to all financial asscts with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes these to be high quality
assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from whom these financial assets are recoverable, have strong
capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is negligible and accordingly no provision for expected credit loss has been
provided on such firancial asscis, Break up of financial asscts other than trade receivables have been disclosed on balance sheet

The Company’s meximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2025.and 31st March. 2024 is the carrying value of each class of financial

assets,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeiing its obligation associaled with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial assct. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure, as [ar as possible, that it will have
sufficient liguidity to meel its liabilitics when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company’s reputation, Any short terim surplus cash generaied, over and above the amount required for working capital
management and other operational requirements is retained as Cash and Cash Equivalents (to the extent required).

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

The responsibility of liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who are responsible for establishing an appropriste risk
manag=ment framework for short-, medium-, and long-terin liquidity measures, ensuring adequate cash flows and banking facilitics
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The following tahle shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s Financial Liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash
flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance Sheel Dale

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Less than 12 months | More than 12 months | Less than 12 months More than 12
months

Secured
Bank Overdraft 17.14 - - -
Unsecured
Loans from Related party 656.94 - - -
Trade Payables 4001 - 416.08 -

Total 714.09 - 416.08 -

(d) Collateral

The Company has pledged its Non-Current as well as Current Assets to a consortium of lenders as collateral towards borrowings by the

Company.

NOTE 35: LEASES

The Company has entered into Operating Leases on Immovabie Properties.

Assets Taken on Lease

Future minimum rentals payable under cancellable operating leases as at are, as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars As at As at

No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) |Intcspect of operating lease on Inmovable properties payments recognized in Statement of 9.93 15.19
Profit and Loss.

(b) |Future minimum lease payments under operating leases
For a period not Luter than one year 9.00 9.00
For the period later than one year and not later than five yoars 9.00 9.00

NOTE 36: RELATED PARTY
List of related parties and Relationship

A Enterprises where control exisis :-

Holding Company

1 Fineotex Chemica

I Limited

B  Key Managerial Personnel :

a.  Executive Directors :

1 Surendra Tibrewala

2 Sanjay Tibrewala
3 Sunil Waghmare

C  Fellow Subsidiary

Finoclean Specialities Private Limited




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

D Transaction with Related Parties

i.  Transaction during the year
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Holding Company Key Managenment Entities in which Key Total
Personnel Management Personnel
or its relatives are
interested / Relative
of Key Managenient
Personnel / Feilow
Subsidiary
31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

LOAN TAKEN ' 7
Fineotex Chemical Limited - 881.34 3.36 - - - - - 881.34 3.36
‘Total 881.34 3.36 - - - 881.34 3.36
LOAN REPAID
Fineviex Chemical Limiied 22441 9.15 - - - - 224.41 9.15
Total 224.41 9.15 - - - - 22441 9.15
RENT EXPENSES *
Fineotex Chemical Limited 9.00 1425 - - - - 9.00 14.25
Total 9.00 14.25 - - - - 9.00 14.25
INTERFST PAID
Fineotex Chemical Limited 7.68 0.01 - - - - 7.68 0.01]
Total 7.68 0.01 - o= - - 7.68 0.01
DEPOSIT RECEIPT
Finaclean Specialitics Private - - - - 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Limited
Total - - - - 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.530
RENT RECEIVED
Finaclean Specialities Private - - - - 3.00 0.25 3.00 0.25
Limited
Total - - - - 3.00 0.25 3.00 0.25
ELECTRICITY CHARGES
RECEIVED
Finoclean Specialities Private - - - - 1.20 0.15 1.20 0.15
Limited
Total - - - - 1.20 0.15 1.20 u.15
WATER CHARGES
RECEIVED
Finoclean Spevialities Privale - ) - = 0.60 0.07 0.60 0.07
Limited
Total - - - - 0.60 0.07 0.60 0.07
LOAN TAKEN
Finoclean Specialities Private B - - - - 249 - 2.49
Limiited
Total - - - - - 2.49 - 2.49
LOAN REPAID
Finoclean Specialities Private - - - - - 249 - 2.49
Limited
Total - - - ’ - - 249 - 2.49
DIVIDEND PAID 275.00 90,00 - - - - 275.00 950.00
Total 275.00 930.00 - - - - 275.00 930.00 ;




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

Particulars Holding Company Key Management Entities in which Key Total
Personnel Management Personnel
or its relatives are
interested / Relative
of Key Management
Personnel / Fellow
Subsidiary :
31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March | 31st Maych | 3ist March | 31st March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

REIMBURSEMENT OF

EXPENSES

Fineotex Chemical Limited 2.43 1.08 - - - - 243 1.08
Total 243 1.08 - - - - 2.43 1.08
Total 1,399.86 977.85 - - 6.30 6.95 1,406.16 084.80
Note :
Related parties are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors

* Figures are Net of Taxes as appliczble

ii.  Outstanding balances as on reporting date

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Holding Company Key Management Entities in which Key Total

Personnel Management Personnel
or its relatives are
interested / Relative
of Key Management
Personnel / Fellow
Subsidiary
Maych 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
SECURITY DEPOSIT GIVEN
Fineotex Chemical Limited 6.00 6.00 - - - - 6.00 6.0
Total 6.00 6.00 - - - - 6.00 6.00
SHORT TERM
BORROWINGS
Fineotex Chemical Limited 636.94 - - - - - 656.94 -
Total 656.94 - - - - - 656.94 -
DEPOSIT RECEIPT
Finoclean Specialities Private - - - - 1.50 1.30 1.50 1.50
Limited
Total - - - - 1.50 1.59 150 1.50
Note:

Related parties are identified by the Conipany and relied upon by the Auditors




FSPL SPECTALITIES PRIVATE LAMITED
(FORMERLY XNCWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025
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NOTE 37: SEGMENT REPORTING

The Compuny primarily operate in scgmant of Manufacturing of Textile Chemicals , Auxiliarics and Speciality Chemicals. The Chairman
and Whole Time director/ Managing Director of the Company allocate resources and assess the performance of the Company, Thus are the
Chief Operating decision maker ( CODM) . The CODM monitors the operaling results of the business as a one, hence no seprate Segmant
need to be Disclose,

Balances of Trade RECCE\'E:!_‘IE-S, Trade Payables, Advances and Deposits received / given, from /1o customers are subject to confirmation and
) 2 i3 > i
subs cyuent reconciliation,

Figures in brackels indicate previous year’s figures. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclissified wherever
necessary to conform with this year’s classification.

Additional information Pursuant to pamgra]}l‘. 6 (L) of Part 1 of Schedule I11 of the _C‘ompénies Act 2013 (as certified by the Director) is given
in Annexure “A” hereto, ’ ‘ o ’ .

41 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE:
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 20th May , 2025 have not recommended a puyment of final dividend for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025,
CORFPORATE INFORMATION 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
NOTES ONACCOUNTS 3 to 4l
As per aur reporl of even date atiachied For and on behaif of the Board of Direct
For ASL & CO FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LI}V
Chartered Accountants (FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX

Firm Reg. No. 101921W

7

Partner
Mombership Na. 136484

Date : 20th May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

g,ﬁw,,vaj

Surendrakumar Tibrewala
Chairnan and Managing Direcior

A DIN: 00218394




FSPL SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS FINEOTEX SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31 2025

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) - (Also Refer Note No 3)

CWIP aging schedule
Curreat Year
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP .
<1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 Years Total
Projects in progress 649.71 - - 649.71
Projects temporarily suspended - . - .
649.71 - - 549.71
Previous Year
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP ” ; T 2
<1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 Years Total
Projects in progress = - - =
Projects temporarily suspended - 2 - -
ANNEXURE “A” REFERRED TC IN NOTE NO. 38 OF NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1) | FINANCIAL RATIOS Numerator Denominator 2024-2025( 2023-2024| Variance | Reason for Variznce
% >25%
A) |CURRENT RATIO Total current Total Current 1.92 3.91| (51.04%) | Efficic:t Working
Assels Liabilitics Capital Management
B) [DEBT EQUITY RATIO Dehits Consists of | Total Equity 0.10 - 6% | N.A
Borrowing
C) |DEBT SERVICE Earnings Before | Debt Servicing - 65.62 277291 (76.34%) | Lower profitability
COYERAGE RATIO Inieiest , Tax and | Intercst Payment During the Year
Depreciation and & Principal
Amortisation Payment
D) |RETURN ON EQUITY Net Profit After Average Total 19.56% 43.49%| (57.01%) | Lower Profitability
RATIO Tax Equity During the Year
E) [INYENTORY TURNOVER Net Sales Average 11.16 20,07 | (44.37%;j | Lower Net sales
RATIO Inventory During the year = -
F) |IRADE RECEIVABLES Net Credit Sales | Average Trade 8.36 10,581 (19.13%90) | N.A
TURNOVER RATIO Receivables :
G) |TRADE PAYARLES Net Credit Avearge Trade 9.38 1048 (10.43%) | N.A
TURNOVER RATIO Purchases Payables :
H) INET CAPITAL_ Revenue from | Average Working 6.10 6.36]  (4.08%5) | NLA
THURNOVER RATIO Ouerations Capital
1) |NEYPROFITRATIO Protit For the Net Sales 31.01% 30.37% L4451 N.A
Year
J) |RETURN ON CAPITAL Earning Before Net Worth 20.22% 48.33% | (58.17%)| Lower profitability
EMPLOYED Interest & Taxes During The Year
Note:

Reusons for variances > 25% , is as given by the manageinent







